
 

1 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
THURSDAY, MARCH 23, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 
GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 

9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Guadalupe Town Council 
and to the public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on Thursday, 
March 23, 2023, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council 
Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona.  

 

AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of the March 09, 2023, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes.  
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items 
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for 
the Call to the Audience agenda item unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please note 
that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the 
time the item is heard. 
 
F. MAYOR AND COUNCIL PRESENTATION:   
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 

 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA 
(V2023-01):  Hold a public hearing to receive public input regarding a variance request of the Town of 
Guadalupe Zoning Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E), Single Family 
Residential Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area Height and Setback Regulations.  The variance request is 
to decrease the Minimum Lot Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 9403 South 
Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ.  Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180.  The lot is 
zoned R1-6, Single-family Residential.  The Applicant is Martin Esparza.  Council may provide direction 
to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to item G2) 

  



 

2 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

2. VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA (V2023-01):  Council will 
consider and may take action to approve or deny a variance request of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E), Single Family Residential Districts R-
1-9 and R-1-6, Area Height and Setback Regulations.  The variance request is to decrease the Minimum 
Lot Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 9403 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, 
AZ.  Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential.  The Applicant is Martin Esparza.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / 
Clerk. (related to item G1) 

3. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE 
BELLA VISTA (CU2023-02): Hold a public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit request to 
locate a manufactured home on the property of 9403 S Calle Bella Vista Guadalupe, AZ, per 
the Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.065 (D) (5).  The property is zoned R1-6, Maricopa 
County Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180.  The Applicant is Martin Esparza.  Council may 
provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to G4) 

4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA 
(CU2023-02): Council will consider and may take action to approve or deny a Conditional Use 
Permit request to locate a manufactured home on the property of 9403 S Calle Bella Vista 
Guadalupe, AZ, per the Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.065 (D) (5).  The property is 
zoned R1-6, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180.  The Applicant is Martin 
Esparza.  (related to G3) 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (V2023-02):  
Hold a public hearing to receive public input regarding a variance request of the Town of Guadalupe 
Zoning Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E), Single Family Residential 
Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area Height and Setback Regulations.  The variance request is to decrease 
the Minimum Lot Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 5536 E Calle Encinas, 
Guadalupe, AZ.  Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104D.  The lot is zoned R1-6, 
Single-family Residential.  The Applicant is Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy.  Council may provide direction 
to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to item G6) 

6. VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (V2023-02):  Council will consider 
and may take action to approve or deny a variance of the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E), Single Family Residential Districts R-1-9 and 
R-1-6, Area Height and Setback Regulations.  The variance request is to decrease the Minimum Lot 
Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 5536 E Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ.  
Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104D.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential.  The Applicant is Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy.  Council may provide direction to the Town 
Manager / Clerk. (related to item G5) 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE 
ENCINAS (CU2023-03): Hold a public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit request to locate 
a manufactured home on the property of 5536 East Calle Encinas Guadalupe, AZ, per the 
Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.065 (D) (5).  The property is zoned R1-6, Maricopa 
County Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104D.  The Applicant is Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy.  Council 
may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to G8) 

8. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (CU2023-
03): Council will consider and may take action to approve or deny a Conditional Use Permit 
request for a manufactured home to be located on the property of 5536 E Calle Encinas 
Guadalupe, AZ, per the Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.065 (D) (5).  The property is 
zoned R1-6, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104D.  The Applicant is Petra Alicia 
Mendez Neyoy.  (related to G7) 



 

3 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 5605 EAST CALLE MEXICO (RZ2023-01):  
Hold a public hearing for a rezoning request of the property located at 5605 East Calle Mexico  
Guadalupe, AZ, currently zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 General Commercial, 
so that the proposed use of the property would comply with allowable uses with the C-2 zoning 
designation as defined in Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.067(C)(3 & 4).  The proposed 
use for the property is to perform automobile minor repairs, tune ups and oil changes.  
Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-06-194.  The Applicant is Jose Abel Armenta, 
property owner.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related to G10) 

10. REZONING REQUEST – 5605 EAST CALLE MEXICO (RZ2023-01):  Council will consider and 
may take action to approve or deny a rezoning request of the property located at 5605 East Calle 
Mexico Guadalupe, AZ, currently zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 General 
Commercial, so that the proposed use of the property would comply with allowable uses with 
the C-2 zoning designation as defined in Guadalupe Town Code, Section § 154.067(C)(3 & 
4).  The proposed use for the property is to perform automobile minor repairs, tune ups and 
oil changes.  Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-06-194.  The Applicant is Jose Abel 
Armenta, property owner.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk. (related 
to G9) 

H. TOWN MANAGER/CLERK’S COMMENTS 
 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

1 
 

 

March 17, 2023 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  March 23, 2023, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each agenda item.   

Agenda Items: 

D1. MARCH 09, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES (PAGES 11 – 18) 
 
G1. PUBLIC HEARING – 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA (V2023-01) (PAGES 19 – 39):  The Applicant, Mr. 
Martin Esparza, is requesting a variance to the zoned R1-6, Single-family Residential property located at 9403 South 
Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel 301-43-180. The variance is requested to 
locate a manufactured home on the property through an approved Conditional Use permit.  The requested variance is 
to allow a decrease in the minimum lot width requirement from 60’ to 50’ as required for R1-6 zoning of 6,000 square 
feet per Town of Guadalupe Zoning Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E)(1), Single Family 
Residential Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area Height and Setback Regulations: 
     

Minimum Yard Setbacks 
 

Zoning 
District 

Min. Lot Area Min. Lot 
Width 

Min. Lot 
Depth 

Front Side Street Side Rear Max. Bldg. 
Height 

R-1-9 9,000 square feet 80’ 100’ 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’; 
accessory 
building 

R-1-6 6,000 square feet 60’ 90’ 25’ 7’* 15’ 10’ 30’ 

*for ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side. 
 
The public hearing for this variance request has been properly posted on site and published in a newspaper of general 
circulation; and properties within a 150-foot radius of the applicant’s property were notified via postal mail, as required 
by the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance § 154.034 NOTIFICATION (B) (1) – (5).  The Applicant has properly 
submitted all information and paid all applicable fees.  As of March 15, 2023, no public comments have been received.     
Agenda items G1 – G4 are related. 
 
G2.   VARIANCE REQUEST - 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA (V2023-01) (PAGES 19 – 39):  Town Council 
may approve or deny a variance request for 9403 South Calle Bella Vista. Per the Town Zoning Code, Part II, 
Administration, B. 1 and B. 2 a,b,c:  a variance, as requested by the applicant, Mr. Martin Esparza, for the zoned R1-
6, Single-family Residential property located at 9403 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ.  Maricopa County 
Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180, shall not be authorized unless the Town Council shall find upon sufficient evidence: 
 

4



 
 

2 
 

a. That there are special circumstances or conditions applying to the property, including its size, shape, 
topography, location, or surroundings, the strict application of this Ordinance will deprive such property of 
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the same district; and, 

b. That such special circumstances were not created by the owner or applicant; and, 
c. That the authorizing of the application will not be materially detrimental to persons residing or working in the 
 vicinity not constitute the granting of special privileges inconsistent with the limitations of adjacent property, 
 the neighborhood, or the public-welfare, in general. 
 

Because of the property is 50’ wide, it does not comply with Town Code.  In review, this existing condition provides 
sufficient evidence to recommend approval of the variance.     
 
Town staff recommends approval of the variance as this is a special lot size circumstance, is not a self-imposed 
circumstance, and will not be materially detrimental to the area. Council also has the authority to add and or modify 
various stipulations to a Variance.  Agenda items G1 – G4 are related. 

 

 
 

 
G3.  PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA 
VISTA (CU2023-02) (PAGES 19 – 39):  This is a public hearing to consider the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 
(#CU2023-02) to locate a manufactured home at 9403 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, Maricopa 
County Assessor Parcel APN 301-43-180.  The applicant is Martin Esparza and the property is zoned R-1-6 
Residential.  Per Resolution 95-19, Conditional Use Permits will be issued only upon substantial justification and where 
the manufactured home is owner occupied.  If approved, Mr. Esparza intends to locate a manufactured home on the 
property and reside at this address.  
   

Resolution 95-19 
A resolution of the mayor and town council of the town of Guadalupe, Maricopa 
county, Arizona, establishing town policy against manufactured housing units 
(mobile homes) having frontage on Avenida del Yaqui and Guadalupe road; and 
establishing a town policy requiring mobile homes in the remaining areas of the 
town to be owner-occupied for issuance of a conditional use permit. 

 
The property has been posted, notifying the public of the conditional use permit and variance requests; a legal 
advertisement for this public hearing has been published in the newspaper; and, property owners within 150’ of the 
subject address have also been notified of the conditional use permit and variance requests.  The applicant has paid 
all applicable fees associated with this request.  As of March 15, 2023, no public comments have been received.   
 
The Applicant, Martin Esparza, is also applying for a variance of property minimum width requirements.   
Agenda items G1 – G4 are related. 
 

5



 
 

3 
 

G4.  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA (CU2023-02) 
(PAGES 19 – 39):  Town Council may approve or deny a Conditional Use Permit (#CU2023-02) request is to locate a 
manufactured home at 9403 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel 
APN 301-43-180 . The Applicant is Martin Esparza.  The property is zoned R-1-6 Residential.   
 
Per Resolution 95-19, Conditional Use Permits will be issued only upon substantial justification and where the 
manufactured home is owner occupied.  If approved, Mr. Esparza intends to locate a manufactured home on the 
property and reside at this address.  

Resolution 95-19 
A resolution of the mayor and town council of the town of Guadalupe, Maricopa 
county, Arizona, establishing town policy against manufactured housing units 
(mobile homes) having frontage on Avenida del Yaqui and Guadalupe road; and 
establishing a town policy requiring mobile homes in the remaining areas of the 
town to be owner-occupied for issuance of a conditional use permit. 

 
The property located at the southeast corner of Calle Bella Vista and Calle Barbarita has been vacant since 2012, per 
the Maricopa County Assessor maps.    
 
Should the Conditional Use permit be approved, and prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, Town staff will 
inspect the premises to ensure the home complies with applicable Town building codes.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use permit. Agenda items G1 – G4 are related.   
 
G5.  PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (V2023-02) (PAGES 40 
– 61): The Applicant, Ms. Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy, is requesting a variance to the zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential property located at 5536 East Calle Encinas , Guadalupe, AZ.  Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 
301-12-104C. The variance is requested to locate a manufactured home on the property through an approved 
Conditional Use permit.  The requested variance is to allow a decrease in the minimum lot width requirement from 60’ 
to 50’ as required for R1-6 zoning of 6,000 square feet per Town of Guadalupe Zoning Code of Ordinances Chapter 
54, Zoning, Section § 154.065(E)(1), Single Family Residential Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area Height and Setback 
Regulations: 
     

Minimum Yard Setbacks 
 

Zoning 
District 

Min. Lot Area Min. Lot 
Width 

Min. Lot 
Depth 

Front Side Street Side Rear Max. Bldg. 
Height 

R-1-9 9,000 square feet 80’ 100’ 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’; 
accessory 
building 

R-1-6 6,000 square feet 60’ 90’ 25’ 7’* 15’ 10’ 30’ 

*for ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side. 
 
The public hearing for this variance request has been properly posted on site and published in a newspaper of general 
circulation; and properties within a 150-foot radius of the applicant’s property were notified via postal mail, as required 
by the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance § 154.034 NOTIFICATION (B) (1) – (5).  The Applicant has properly 
submitted all information and paid all applicable fees.  As of March 15, 2023, no public comments have been received.     
Agenda items G5 – G8 are related. 
 
 
 

6



 
 

4 
 

G6.  VARIANCE REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (V2023-02) (PAGES 40 – 61):  Town Council 
may approve or deny a variance request for 5536 East Calle Encinas.  Per the Town Zoning Code, Part II, 
Administration, B. 1 and B. 2 a,b,c:  a variance, as requested by the applicant, Ms. Ms. Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy , 
for the zoned R1-6, Single-family Residential property located at 5536 East Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ.  Maricopa 
County Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104C, shall not be authorized unless the Town Council shall find upon 
sufficient evidence: 

 
a. That there are special circumstances or conditions applying to the property, including its size, shape, 

topography, location, or surroundings, the strict application of this Ordinance will deprive such property of 
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the same district; and, 

b. That such special circumstances were not created by the owner or applicant; and, 
c. That the authorizing of the application will not be materially detrimental to persons residing or working in the 
 vicinity not constitute the granting of special privileges inconsistent with the limitations of adjacent property, 
 the neighborhood, or the public-welfare, in general. 
 

Because of the property is 50’ wide, it does not comply with Town Code.  In review, this existing condition provides 
sufficient evidence to recommend approval of the variance.     
 
Town staff recommends approval of the variance as this is a special lot size circumstance, is not a self-imposed 
circumstance, and will not be materially detrimental to the area. Council also has the authority to add and or modify 
various stipulations to a Variance.  Agenda items G5 – G8 are related. 

 

 
 

 
G7.  PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS 
(CU2023-03) (PAGES 40 – 61):  This is a public hearing to consider the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit 
(#CU2023-03) to locate a manufactured home at 5536 East Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, Maricopa County 
Assessor Parcel APN 301-12-104C.    The applicant is Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy and the property is zoned R-1-6 
Residential.  Per Resolution 95-19, Conditional Use Permits will be issued only upon substantial justification and where 
the manufactured home is owner occupied.  If approved, Mr. Mendez Neyoy intends to locate a manufactured home 
on the property and reside at this address.  
   

Resolution 95-19 
A resolution of the mayor and town council of the town of Guadalupe, Maricopa 
county, Arizona, establishing town policy against manufactured housing units 

7



 
 

5 
 

(mobile homes) having frontage on Avenida del Yaqui and Guadalupe road; and 
establishing a town policy requiring mobile homes in the remaining areas of the 
town to be owner-occupied for issuance of a conditional use permit. 

 
The property has been posted, notifying the public of the conditional use permit and variance requests; a legal 
advertisement for this public hearing has been published in the newspaper; and, property owners within 150’ of the 
subject address have also been notified of the conditional use permit and variance requests.  The applicant has paid 
all applicable fees associated with this request.  As of March 15, 2023, no public comments have been received.   
 
The Applicant, Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy, is also applying for a variance of property minimum width requirements 
Agenda items G5 – G8 are related. 
 
G8.  CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REQUEST FOR 5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS (CU2023-03) (PAGES 
40 – 61): Town Council may approve or deny a Conditional Use Permit (#CU2023-03) request is to locate a 
manufactured home at 5536 East Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 
301-12-104C. The Applicant is Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy.  The property is zoned R-1-6 Residential.   
 
Per Resolution 95-19, Conditional Use Permits will be issued only upon substantial justification and where the 
manufactured home is owner occupied.  If approved, Ms. Mendez-Neyoy, intends to locate a manufactured home on 
the property and reside at this address.  

Resolution 95-19 
A resolution of the mayor and town council of the town of Guadalupe, Maricopa 
county, Arizona, establishing town policy against manufactured housing units 
(mobile homes) having frontage on Avenida del Yaqui and Guadalupe road; and 
establishing a town policy requiring mobile homes in the remaining areas of the 
town to be owner-occupied for issuance of a conditional use permit. 

 
The property located approximately 160 feet west of the Avenida del Yaqui and Calle Encinas intersection and has had 
a dilapidated mobile home removed within the past 6 months.     
 
Should the Conditional Use permit be approved, and prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, Town staff will 
inspect the premises to ensure the home complies with applicable Town building codes.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use permit. Agenda items G5 – G8 are related.   
 
G9. PUBLIC HEARING PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST FOR 5605 EAST CALLE MEXICO 
(RZ2023-01) (PAGES 62 - 82):  A public hearing is required for rezoning requests.  This request is to rezone the 
property located at 5605 East Calle Mexico  Guadalupe, AZ, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-06-
194, currently zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 General Commercial, so that the proposed use 
of the property would comply with allowable uses with the C-2 zoning designation as defined in Guadalupe 
Town Code, Section § 154.067(C)(3 & 4).  The proposed use for the property is to perform automobile minor 
repairs, tune ups and oil changes.  The Applicant is Jose Abel Armenta, property owner.   

The 9,227 Square foot property is presently vacant, surrounded by a chain link fence.  It is located at the southeast 
corner of Avenida del Yaqui and Calle Mexico and is bordered to the east by a R1-9 residential property.  Agenda items 
G9 & G10 are related.Information 

8



 
 

6 
 

 

 

G10. REZONING REQUEST FOR 5605 EAST CALLE MEXICO (RZ2023-01) (PAGES 62 – 82):  Town Council 
may approve or deny the Rezoning request (RZ2023-01)  is to rezone the property located at 5605 East Calle 
Mexico  Guadalupe, AZ, Maricopa County Assessor Parcel APN 301-06-194, currently zoned C-1 
Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 General Commercial, so that the proposed use of the property would 
comply with allowable uses with the C-2 zoning designation as defined in Guadalupe Town Code, Section 
§ 154.067(C)(3 & 4).  The proposed use for the property is to perform automobile minor repairs, tune ups 
and oil changes.  The Applicant is Jose Abel Armenta, property owner.   

 

 Rezoning Request: 

The requested rezoning to C-2 Zoning Designation, under the Guadalupe Town Code, Section 154.067(C)(4)(a) would 
allow for: 

(4)   The following outdoor general retail business and service establishments shall be permitted in the C-2 and C-M 
Districts: 

         (a)   Automobile service stations, including minor repairs and lubricating, automobile car wash service; 

The current C-1 Zoning does not allow for these auto related uses.   

In general, per the Guadalupe Town Code of Ordinances, Section § 154.067 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS; C-1 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL, C-2 GENERAL COMMERCIAL… 

   (A)   Intent. 

      (1)   The C-1 Neighborhood Commercial District is intended to preserve and protect neighborhood commercial 
areas located in close proximity of residential areas and to provide retailing of convenience goods and services to meet 
the frequent needs of the neighborhood.  (Existing zoning designation) 

      (2)   The C-2 General Commercial District is intended to provide space for general retail and office uses, and 
efficient development of major retail shopping areas to serve the needs of the community and regional area.  
(Requested zoning designation) 

C-1 and C-2 zoning designations must also comply with Sections § 154.067 (B) General Regulations: 

 (B)   General regulations. 

      (3)   In the C-1, C-2, and C-M Districts, overhead doors and loading and service bays shall be screened from public 
street view by opaque fences or walls, six feet in height. 

9



 
 

7 
 

      (4)   In the C-1, C-2, and C-M Districts, the yards required adjacent to public streets shall be entirely landscaped 
except for necessary driveways and walkways; parking and maneuvering areas shall be located beyond those required 
landscaped yards. 

 Application and Notification: 

The Town Manager/Clerk and Town Planning Consultant have reviewed the rezoning application packet for 
completeness and conformance with the Town Code of Ordinances.  The property has been properly posted, a 
notification of the rezoning request and public hearing has been mailed to property owners located within 150’ of the 
property, and properly advertised in a newspaper per State Statues.  To date, the Town has not received any comment 
or feedback regarding this request.   

 Analysis:  

The Town Manager/Clerk and Town Planning Consultant have examined the rezoning request and recommends 
approval of the rezoning from C-1 to C-2.   

Development may proceed upon submittal, review and approval of site plan and construction documents.  Future 
development project shall conform to all development standards in Town Code, including but not limited to:  

 Enclosed building,  
 Site fencing, 
 On Site and off-site landscaping, 
 Paved parking area and driveways, 
 On site retention.   

Agenda items G9 & G10 are related. 

 

 

10



 

1 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

March 09, 2023 
 

Minutes of the Guadalupe Town Council Regular Meeting held on March 09, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona. 

A. Mayor Molina called the meeting to order at 6:25 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Valerie Molina, Vice Mayor Ricardo Vital, Councilmember Anita Cota 
Soto, Councilmember Elvira Osuna, Councilmember Esteban F. V. Fuerte, Councilmember Joe 
Sanchez, and Councilmember Mary Bravo.   
 
Staff Present:  Jeff Kulaga – Town Manager / Clerk and Rocio Ruiz – Deputy Town Clerk 
Staff Present via Zoom: Barry Aylstock – Town Attorney 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Councilmember Soto and Councilmember Bravo provided the invocation.  Mayor Molina then led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of the February 23, 2023, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes.  

 
Motion by Councilmember Fuerte to approve agenda item D1; second by Councilmember Soto.  
Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0. 
 

1. Councilmembers approved the February 23, 2023, Town Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes.  

 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
Mayor Molina called upon Veronica Tolliver with the YMCA to address the Council.  Ms. Tolliver 
attended the meeting via Zoom.  Ms. Tolliver stated she is a Manager at the YMCA at Rural Road 
and Guadalupe Road.  Ms. Tolliver stated the YMCA received a Covid Relief Grant called Y 
Achievers Program, which will expire June 30th, 2023.  The Y Achievers Program serves youth 
ages 18-24 and helps further their education and teaches life skills.  Ms. Tolliver provided an 
overview of specialized services the program offers.  To join the Y Achievers Program, residents 
may call their local branch or register online. 
 
Mayor Molina asked Ms. Tolliver to provide the Town Manager her information so she may be added 
on a future agenda item and Council may interact. 
 
  

11



 

2 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

Mayor Molina called upon Dr. John Molina to address Council.  Dr. Molina stated he has been a lifelong 
resident of Guadalupe and expressed his appreciation for the Council’s work to maintain the integrity of 
the Town financially and economically.  Dr. Molina stated he is retired however he continues to be 
involved in the Pascua Yaqui Health Clinic that is now being utilized by the National Institution of Health.  
Dr. Molina stated he published a book that talks about growing up in the Town of Guadalupe, Dr. 
Molina’s journey, challenges, failures, successes, how the clinic was built, and issues faced with the 
land and The Biehn Colony Trust.  The name of the book is Im Jittoa Bo’o (My Healing Journey) and is 
currently available on Amazon.  Dr. Molina hopes to present the book to the Guadalupe Library. 
 
Mayor Molina called upon Russell Cage.  Mr. Cage introduced himself and his wife, Magic Cage, to the 
community.  Mr. and Mrs. Cage are tenants of 8045 S. Avenida del Yaqui and owners of Mi Amore 
Catering, which offers catering and hosts special events/gatherings.  Mr. Cage stated he and his wife 
attended the meeting to answer any questions the community may have regarding the property located 
at 8045 S. Avenida del Yaqui.  
 
Mayor Molina thanked Mr. Cage for attending and stated Council is unable to discuss as it is not an 
Agenda item.  Mayor Molina welcomed Mr. and Mrs. Cage to the Community and stated Town Manager 
could add them on future agenda items so the Council could interact. 
 
 
F. MAYOR AND COUNCIL PRESENTATION:   
 
Mayor Molina read a proclamation declaring Saturday, March 11th, 2023, Little League Baseball 
Day.  Mayor Molina presented the proclamation to the president of Tempe Guadalupe Little League 
Baseball, Councilmember Esteban F.V. Fuerte. 
 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 

1. SPECIAL EVENT LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST 
Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider approval, denial, or no 
recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for a Special Event Liquor 
License.  The Applicant is Ralph Cota on behalf of the American Legion Post 124 Guadalupe Veterans, 
a non-profit organization.   
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated the applicant is Ralph Cota and the special event liquor license 
is for the Legion’s annual Spring Dance at the Mercado.  The Legion has provided the proper application 
for the lease of the Mercado, proper staff, and has obtained MCSO for public safety. Staff recommends 
approval.  
 
Mr. Kulaga called upon Rudy Quezada, representative of the American Legion Post 124 Guadalupe 
Veterans to help answer questions the Council may have.  
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding if the event is profitable and well attended, Mr. 
Quezada stated the event is well attended and gets better each year. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bravo to forward a recommendation of APPROVAL of the special 
event liquor license application to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control; 
second by Councilmember Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 5-0-2 with 
Councilmember Osuna and Vice Mayor Vital abstaining.     
 
Councilmembers approved forwarding a recommendation of APPROVAL to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor Licenses and Control for a Special Event Liquor License.  The Applicant is Ralph Cota on behalf 
of the American Legion Post 124 Guadalupe Veterans, a non-profit organization.  The event location is 

12



 

3 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

the Mercado de Guadalupe patio and Multi-purpose Room Suite #3, 9201 South Avenida del Yaqui, 
Guadalupe, AZ.  The proposed event will be held on Saturday, April 15, 2023, 7:00 p.m. – 12:00 
Midnight.  Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office personnel will provide event security and the Post will 
provide age identification verification for alcohol consumption.   
 

2. THE RICHMAN GROUP PROPOSED MIX USE DEVELOPMENT 
Mayor Molina stated Council will receive a presentation from The Richman Group regarding their 
response to the Request for Proposals of lease and/or purchase and development of certain Town-
owned property.  The Town-owned properties are located at the northwest, northeast and southeast 
corners of Avenida del Yaqui and Guadalupe Road.  The proposal includes 3,000 square feet of retail, 
5,000 square feet of community space, and 230 affordable residential units.   
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated this item is for The Richman Group’s proposal as they were 
one of three proposals received for the Request for Proposals done in December 2022. Should Council 
decide to proceed with this proposal, item G3 would allow the Town of Guadalupe to proceed with an 
exclusivity agreement with The Richman Group. Mr. Kulaga introduced Nick Wood with the law firm of 
Snell & Wilmer who represents The Richman Group. 
 
Mr. Wood introduced himself to Council and discussed his background, profession, and qualifications 
in building affordable housing.  Mr. Wood introduced The Richman Group’s proposal for Town owned 
land.  The Richman Group intends to build a total of three affordable housing complexes, two for family 
housing and the third for senior housing.  The proposal is inclusive of 230 affordable dwelling units, a 
community area, and a community center available free of charge for residents of Guadalupe.  Mr. 
Wood exhibited a circulation diagram that showed a path for pedestrians to enjoy new soccer fields, a 
shaded walkway, and new landscaping.   Retail space will be available as part of this proposal.  Mr. 
Wood concluded his presentation asking for permission from Council to begin negotiations with Mr. 
Kulaga and Town Attorney for an acquisition development agreement.   
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Fuerte regarding who would manage the space for 
community events, Mr. Wood stated The Richman Group would manage the space.   
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Bravo regarding what the extra space is for shown on 
the senior living complex, Mr. Wood stated that is parking. Councilmember Bravo stated the only 
architectural aspect of the buildings that matched the community are the arches. 
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Soto regarding how many stories the buildings are 
projected to be, Mr. Wood stated three stories. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding how The Richman Group intends on keeping 
housing affordable and for how long, Mr. Wood stated there is a program that is overseen by the Arizona 
Department of Housing and created by HUD that determines ranges of income for the County. Part of 
the development agreement will outline that The Richman Group will comply with that program and tax 
credits offered will allow them to bring rents down to that affordability rate. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding if The Richman Group will hold public meetings, 
Mr. Wood stated the Council will be part of all the components of a final decision.  Mr. Wood stated he 
will work closely with the Town Council, Town Manager, and Town Consultant. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding if The Richman Group would consider increasing 
the retail space proposed to help the Town’s main source of income being businesses, Mr. Wood stated 
yes increase in retail space could be considered and currently 3,000 square feet of retail space does 
not include leasing office or gym space. 
 

13



 

4 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

In response to a question from Councilmember Fuerte regarding the architectural features of the 
building and if it is possible to include a more cultural aspect, Mr. Wood stated the design will be included 
in the negotiation of the development agreement.    
 
In response to a question from Councilmember Soto regarding what the considerations for the current 
Mercado tenants would be, Mr. Wood stated that is a later phase and gives the tenants the opportunity 
and time to find a new place to operate and the completed project will have retail space available. 
 
Mayor Molina called upon Steve Langstaff to address Council regarding this agenda item.  Mr. Langstaff 
is the executive director of Guadalupe Community Development Corporation (GCDC), a local non-profit 
organization focused on affordable housing for homeownership.  GCDC has built 175 houses for the 
community since 1992; in the last few years, GCDC has built three houses per year and projected to 
build six houses this year.  GCDC is a general partner in two multi-family complexes in Guadalupe, 
Nuestra Senora Apartments and Itom A’e Apartments.   Mr. Langstaff stated that regarding demand for 
affordable housing in the community, there are currently 350 applicants for Nuestra Senora Apartments. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding if the rent for Nuestra Senora Apartments is 
considered affordable or low income, Mr. Langstaff stated the rent is affordable. Mayor Molina stated 
the community is in need of 350 affordable housing units and The Richman Group’s proposal is for 230 
affordable units.     
 
Councilmember Bravo stated she had a question for Mr. Langstaff however, Mr. Kulaga stated GCDC 
is not on the agenda and could be added to a future agenda to discuss with Mr. Langstaff. 
 

3. THE RICHMAN GROUP PROPOSED MIX USE DEVELOPMENT EXCLUSIVITY AGREEMENT 
Mayor Molina stated Council will consider and may take action to authorize the Town Manager or 
designee to proceed to an exclusive negotiation phase with The Richman Group LLC to formulate a 
Development Agreement for the purchase and/or lease and development of Town-owned land, 
described as Sites A-D in the Request for Proposals issued by the Town on December 9, 2022.  The 
Development Agreement will require approval from the Town Council on a future agenda. 
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated if Council authorizes the Town Manager and designees to 
proceed with an exclusive negotiation phase with The Richman Group LLC, Mr. Kulaga will come back 
to Council for consideration.   
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding the timeline for submitting for this year’s tax 
credit is tight, Nick Wood, The Richman Group Attorney, stated that while there is a lot of work to be 
done, The Richman Group will attempt to meet the April 1st deadline.  
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding entering this exclusivity agreement and how 
soon the public would be informed, Mr. Wood stated they will begin informing the public as soon as they 
have a framework for the agreement.  Mr. Wood stated he has previously worked with the city of Tempe 
and has experience keeping the community updated, such as providing updates on the city website and 
holding informational hearings, and The Richman Group intends to do the same with Guadalupe 
residents.  
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to authorize the Town Manager or designee to proceed to an 
exclusive negotiation phase with The Richman Group LLC; second by Councilmember Fuerte. 
 
Councilmembers authorized the Town Manager/Clerk to proceed to an exclusive negotiation phase with 
The Richman Group LLC to formulate a Development Agreement for the purchase and/or lease and 
development of Town-owned land, described as Sites A-D in the Request for Proposals issued by the 
Town on December 9, 2022.    

14



 

5 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

4. REQUEST TO CONTINUE TO APRIL 13, 2023, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING: MARICOPA  
COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE UPDATE 
Mayor Molina stated Council will receive an update from Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office 
representatives regarding public safety in the Town of Guadalupe. 
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated representatives from the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office were 
unable to attend tonight’s meeting and this item will be continued to the April 13th, 2023, Regular Council 
Meeting. 
 

5. 2023 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT PROGRAM 
Mayor Molina stated Council will receive recommendations for sixteen 12% revenue sharing (gaming) 
grant submittals for the 2023 grant cycle from Town Manager / Clerk.  The sixteen recommended grant 
submittals to five entities total $1,101,000.00 for the 2023 grant cycle.   
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated the resolutions to the individual entities follow as Agenda Items 
6 through 10.  Mr. Kulaga stated Item 6 is a proposal for $179,000 from the Ak-Chin Indian Community 
to fund Public Access Cardiac AED’s and equipment for the Guadalupe Fire Department, Cultural 
Heritage events programming, and Public Works vehicle shade canopy.  Mr. Kulaga stated Item 7 is a 
proposal for $107,000 from the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation for the Senior Center entry patio remodel 
and Public Works maintenance yard restroom renovation.  Mr. Kulaga stated Item 8 is a proposal for 
$280,000 from the Gila River Indian Community to fund Fire Department Public Safety equipment, Fire 
Department command/community service vehicle, Senior Center elderly activity programs, and 
Community Action Program utility assistance.  Mr. Kulaga stated Item 9 is a proposal for $425,000 from 
the Pascua Yaqui Tribe for the renovation of the Guadalupe Fire Station truck bay flooring, doors, and 
roof; renovation of Biehn Park restrooms, ballpark, and playground; installation of flagpoles, renovation 
of a ramada, and replacement of gates at the Guadalupe Cemetery; and Public Safety Services – 
cultural and community events.  Mr. Kulaga stated Item 10 is a proposal for $110,000 from the Tohono 
O’odham Nation the purchase of two dump trucks for Public Works, Neighborhood Clean Up events for 
Public works, Community Action Program food, hygiene, and holiday meals assistance. 
 
Mr. Kulaga stated staff has recognized these needs for the community and facilities totaling 
$1,101,000.00.  Each grant application requires an approved Resolution by Council.   
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding if the Town was just granted gear money, Mr. 
Kulaga stated that was two years ago. 
 

6. AK-CHIN INDIAN COMMUNITY 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2023.02) 

Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider adopting Resolution No. R2023.02 
authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $179,000 from 
the Ak-Chin Indian Community to fund Public Access Cardiac AED’s and equipment for the Guadalupe 
Fire Department, Cultural Heritage events programming, and Public Works vehicle shade canopy; and, 
direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application.   
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve Resolution No. R2023.02; second by Councilmember 
Soto.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0 
 
Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2023.02 authorizing the submittal of an application for 
a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $179,000 from the Ak-Chin Indian Community to fund Public 
Access Cardiac AED’s and equipment for the Guadalupe Fire Department, Cultural Heritage events 
programming, and Public Works vehicle shade canopy; and directed the Mayor, or designee, to sign all 
necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 

15



 

6 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

7. FORT MCDOWELL YAVAPAI NATION 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2023.03) 

Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider adopting Resolution No. R2023.03 
authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $107,000 from 
the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation for the Senior Center entry patio remodel and Public Works 
maintenance yard restroom renovation; and direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary 
documents in furtherance of this grant application. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve Resolution No. R2023.03; second by Councilmember 
Bravo.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0 
 
Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2023.03 authorizing the submittal of an application for 
a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $107,000 from the Fort McDowell Yavapai Nation for the 
Senior Center entry patio remodel and Public Works maintenance yard restroom renovation; and 
directed the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 
 

8. GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2023.04) 

Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider adopting Resolution No. R2023.04 
authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $280,000 from 
the Gila River Indian Community to fund Fire Department Public Safety equipment, Fire Department 
command/community service vehicle, Senior Center elderly activity programs, and Community Action 
Program utility assistance; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in 
furtherance of this grant application. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve Resolution No. R2023.04; second by Councilmember 
Soto.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0 
 
Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2023.04 authorizing the submittal of an application for 
a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $280,000 from the Gila River Indian Community to fund Fire 
Department Public Safety equipment, Fire Department command/community service vehicle, Senior 
Center elderly activity programs, and Community Action Program utility assistance; and directed the 
Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 
 

9. PASCUA YAQUI TRIBE 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. R2023.05) 
Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider adopting Resolution No. R2023.05 
authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $425,000 from 
the Pascua Yaqui Tribe for the renovation of the Guadalupe Fire Station truck bay flooring, doors, and 
roof; renovation of Biehn Park restrooms, ballpark, and playground; installation of flagpoles, renovation 
of a ramada, and replacement of gates at the Guadalupe Cemetery; and, Public Safety Services – 
cultural and community events; and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in 
furtherance of this grant application. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve Resolution No. R2023.05; second by Councilmember 
Soto.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0 
 
Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2023.05 authorizing the submittal of an application for 
a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $425,000 from the Pascua Yaqui Tribe for the renovation of 
the Guadalupe Fire Station truck bay flooring, doors, and roof; renovation of Biehn Park restrooms, 
ballpark, and playground; installation of flagpoles, renovation of a ramada, and replacement of gates at 
the Guadalupe Cemetery; and, Public Safety Services – cultural and community events; and, directed 
the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 

16



 

7 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

 

10. TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION 12% REVENUE SHARING GRANT (RESOLUTION NO. 
R2023.06) 

Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to consider adopting Resolution No. R2023.06 
authorizing the submittal of an application for a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $110,000 from 
the Tohono O’odham Nation the purchase of two dump trucks for Public Works, Neighborhood Clean 
Up events for Public works, Community Action Program food, hygiene, and holiday meals assistance; 
and, direct the Mayor, or designee, to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this grant 
application. 
 
Motion by Vice Mayor Vital to approve Resolution No. R2023.06; second by Councilmember 
Soto.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0 
 
Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. R2023.06 authorizing the submittal of an application for 
a 12% revenue sharing (gaming) grant of $110,000 from the Tohono O’odham Nation the purchase of 
two dump trucks for Public Works, Neighborhood Clean Up events for public works, Community Action 
Program food, hygiene, and holiday meals assistance; and, directed the Mayor, or designee, to sign all 
necessary documents in furtherance of this grant application. 
 

11. APPROVAL OF CONTRACT - AVENIDA DEL YAQUI SIDEWALK DESIGN 
Mayor Molina stated that this agenda item is for Council to award contract (C2023-06) with Dibble 
Engineering, the Town Engineer, in the amount of $62,786.00.  The purpose of the contract is for design 
and engineering services, utility coordination with SRP and the City of Tempe, complete construction 
documents, permit review and construction management and inspection needed for the installation of 
a new curb, gutter, sidewalk, and driveway improvements along the west side of Avenida Del Yaqui 
from the Highline Canal Multi-Use Path to approximately 100 feet north of the Highline Canal.  Funding 
for this project is available through approved SRP neighborhood aesthetic funds.  
 
Jeff Kulaga Town Manager/Clerk stated this is the first step in completing the sidewalk along the west 
side of Avenida Del Yaqui from the Highline Canal Multi-Use Path to approximately 100 feet north of 
the Highline Canal. Funding for this project is available through approved SRP neighborhood aesthetic 
funds of $180,000. Staff recommends approval.  
 
In response to a question from Mayor Molina regarding when construction will begin, Mr. Kulaga stated 
Fall/Winter of 2023.  Mr. Kulaga stated construction would start after Tempe Guadalupe Little League 
fall ball and will work through any conflicts with Town events. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fuerte to approve agenda item G11; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0. 
 
Councilmembers awarded a contract (C2023-06) to Dibble Engineering, the Town Engineer, in the 
amount of $62,786.00.  The purpose of the contract is for design and engineering services, utility 
coordination with SRP and the City of Tempe, complete construction documents, permit review and 
construction management and inspection needed for the installation of a new curb, gutter, sidewalk, 
and driveway improvements along the west side of Avenida Del Yaqui from the Highline Canal Multi-
Use Path to approximately 100 feet north of the Highline Canal.  Funding for this project is available 
through approved SRP neighborhood aesthetic funds. 
 
H. TOWN MANAGER/CLERK’S COMMENTS:  NONE. 
 
  

17



 

8 
 

      

 
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Esteban F. V. Fuerte 
Councilmember 

 
Elvira Osuna 

Councilmember 
 

Joe Sánchez 
Councilmember 

 
Anita Cota Soto 
Councilmember 

 
Agendas/Minutes:  

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
Councilmember Bravo 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
 

Councilmember Sanchez 
o Thanked staff for their work. 

 
Councilmember Fuerte 

o Thanked staff for the Little League Baseball Day Proclamation. 
o Announced Little League Opening Day this Saturday.  

 
Councilmember Soto 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Thanked Pascua Yaqui Tribe for their role in remodeling Council Chambers. 
o Promoted families this season and asked for prayers for each other during Cuaresma. 
o Thanked San Diego Bay and their employees. 

 
Councilmember Osuna 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Asked residents to remain vigilant about cultural participants and take care of kids and 

elders. 
 
Vice Mayor Vital 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Announced Groundbreaking Ceremony for the new Health Clinic on March 15th at 10 a.m. 
o Wished Mayor Molina a Happy Birthday. 

 
Mayor Molina 

o Thanked staff for their work. 
o Reminded the community not to take pictures of the cultural ceremonies and be respectful. 
o Announced possible fireworks on Good Friday.  

 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Councilmember Bravo to adjourn the Regular Council Meeting; second by 
Councilmember Fuerte.  Motion passed unanimously on a voice vote 7-0. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

 ____________________________ 
          Valerie Molina, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 

Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the March 9, 
2023, Town of Guadalupe, Town Council Regular Meeting.  I further certify the meeting was duly called 
and held, and that a quorum was present. 

__________________________________ 

Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 

18



19



20



Paid 03/16/23

21



22



23



 
 

Town of Guadalupe 
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ  85283 
(480) 730-3080 

Notice of Public Hearing 

The Guadalupe Town Council will hold a public hearing on Thursday, March 23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, to receive 
public comment on the following: 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Request for a conditional use permit and Variance to locate a manufactured home on 
the 9403 South Calle Bella Vista, zoned R1-6 Residential.   
 

1. Conditional Use Permit Application (CU2023-02) – Martin Esparza, Applicant, is requesting a 
conditional use permit to install a manufactured home on the property located at 9403 South Calle 
Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ.  APN 301-43-180.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family Residential.   

 

2. Variance Application (V2023-01) – Martin Esparza, Applicant, is requesting a variance to the Town 
of Guadalupe Zoning Code, Chapter 54, Zoning, Section §154.065(E), Single Family Residential 
Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area, Height, and Setback Regulations. The variance request is to 
decrease the Minimum Lot Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 9403 South 
Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ.  APN 301-43-180.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential.   

 
Written comments or objections may be filed via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at the hearing.  
Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.       
 
 

Publish:  Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
 

24



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

9403 SOUTH CALLE BELLA VISTA

03/06/2023

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.40

$0.02

$3.42

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3676530

Reference # 66399

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006245105!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council will hold a
public hearing on Thursday, March
23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., Guadalupe
Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del
Yaqui, Council Chambers,
Guadalupe, AZ 85283, to receive
public comment on the following:
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for a
conditional use permit and Variance to
locate a manufactured home on the
9403 South Calle Bella Vista, zoned
R1-6 Residential. 1. Conditional Use
Permit Application (CU2023-02) –
Martin Esparza, Applicant, is
requesting a conditional use permit to
install a manufactured home on the
property located at 9403 South Calle
Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ. APN 301-
43-180. The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-
family Residential. 2. Variance
Application (V2023-01) – Martin
Esparza, Applicant, is requesting a
variance to the Town of Guadalupe
Zoning Code, Chapter 54, Zoning,
Section §154.065(E), Single Family
Residential Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6,
Area, Height, and Setback
Regulations. The variance request is
to decrease the Minimum Lot Width
requirement of 60' to 50'. The property
is located at 9403 South Calle Bella
Vista, Guadalupe, AZ. APN 301-43-
180. The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-
family Residential. Written comments
or objections may be filed via email at
clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at
the hearing. Copies of the Application
are available for review at Guadalupe
Town Hall. Publish: Monday, March 6,
2023
3/6/23

RR-3676530#

25



26



27



28



29



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G1. & G2. Variance Request

G3. & G4. Conditional Use Permit Request 

North 

Seeking Variance And 
Conditional Use Permit for 
Manufactured Home

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

9403 S. Calle Bella Vista 

Zoning: R1-6

Lot Size: 6390 Sq ft. 

30



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista – Public Notice

G1. Variance Request 

G3. Conditional Use Permit Request

Town Council Meeting 
March 23, 2023 

Notification: 
North 

150‘

31



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G1. & G2. Variance Request 

Town Council 
Meeting March 23, 

2023 

§ 154.065 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS: 
R-1-9 AND R-1-6.

The composition of the districts listed above shall be as 
follows.
(E) Area, height, and setback regulations.

(1) The following requirements shall be observed for 
residential uses in the R-1-9 and R-1-6 zoning districts.

Minimum Yard Setbacks

Zoning
District

Min. Lot Area Min. Lot
Width

Min. Lot
Depth

Front Side Street Side Rear Max. Bldg.
Height

R-1-9 9,000 square feet 80’ 100’ 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’; accessory
building

R-1-6 6,000 square feet 60’ 90’ 25’ 7’* 15’ 10’ 30’

*for ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side.

32



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G1. & G2. Variance Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

North

33



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G1. & G2. Variance Request 

Town Council 
Meeting March 23, 

2023 

§ 154.031 VARIANCES.

(A) Application for a variance of zoning regulations shall be filed upon a form 
provided and shall be accompanied by plans and description sufficient to 
indicate the nature of the variance involved.

(B) A variance from the provisions of this chapter shall not be authorized 
unless the Town Council shall find upon sufficient evidence:

(1) There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the 
property, including its size, shape, topography, location, or surroundings, 
the strict application of this chapter will deprive such property of 
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the same district;

(2) Such special circumstances were not created by the owner or 
applicant; and

(3) The authorizing of the application will not be materially 
detrimental to persons residing or working in the vicinity nor constitute 
the granting of special privileges inconsistent with the limitations of 
adjacent property, the neighborhood, or the public welfare in general.

34



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G1. & G2. Variance Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

North

Town Staff Recommendation:   Approve variance

Sufficient evidence demonstrates: 
• Special circumstances – existing lot width of 50 feet
• Special circumstances – not created by owner
• Not detrimental to neighboring area, nor granting of special privileges.

35



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G3. & G4. Conditional Use Permit Request 

§ 154.065 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS: R-1-9 AND R-1-6.

The composition of the districts listed above 
shall be as follows.

(A) Intent. The single-family residential districts 
are intended to provide for low density, 
detached housing in the R-1-9 district and 
medium density, detached housing in the R-1-6 
District.

(B) Permitted uses.

(1) One-family dwelling

(D) Conditional uses. The following uses 
shall be permitted as conditional uses, 
subject to obtaining a conditional use 
permit.

(5) One mobile home per lot.
Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

36



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G3. & G4. Conditional Use Permit Request 

Town Council Meeting 
March 23, 2023 

Setbacks
• 25’ front 
• 7’ side 
• 15’ street side 
• 15’ rear 

Building 
envelope
• 91’ x 27’ 

37



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G3. & G4. Conditional Use Permit Request 

Town Council Meeting 
March 23, 2023 

Setbacks
• 25’ front 
• 7’ side 
• 15’ street side 
• 15’ rear 

Building 
envelope
• 91’ x 27’ 

Building 
Footprint
• 44’ X 24’

38



9403 S. Calle Bella Vista:

G3. & G4. Conditional Use Permit Request 

North 
Seeking Conditional Use 
Permit for Manufactured / 
Mobile Home

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

9403 S. Calle Bella Vista

Zoning: R1-6

Lot Size: 6390 Sq ft. 

Recommendation:
Approve conditional use permit 
with stipulation to comply with all 
Town manufactured / mobile 
home requirements, February 
2020.

39



40



41



42



43



44



 
 

Town of Guadalupe 
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ  85283 
(480) 730-3080 

Notice of Public Hearing 

The Guadalupe Town Council will hold a public hearing on Thursday, March 23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, to receive 
public comment on the following: 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Request for a conditional use permit and Variance to locate a manufactured home on 
the 5536 East Calle Encinas, zoned R1-6 Residential.   
 

1. Conditional Use Permit Application (CU2023-03) – Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy, Applicant, is 
requesting a conditional use permit to install a manufactured home on the property located at 5536 
East Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ.  APN 301-12-104D.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential.   

 
2. Variance Application (V2023-02) – Petra Alicia Mendez Neyoy, Applicant, is requesting a variance 

to the Town of Guadalupe Zoning Code, Chapter 54, Zoning, Section §154.065(E), Single Family 
Residential Districts R-1-9 and R-1-6, Area, Height, and Setback Regulations. The variance request 
is to decrease the Minimum Lot Width requirement of 60’ to 50’.  The property is located at 5536 
East Calle Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ.  APN 301-12-104D.  The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family 
Residential.   

 
Written comments or objections may be filed via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at the hearing.  
Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.       
 
 

Publish:  Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
 
 

45



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

5536 EAST CALLE ENCINAS

03/06/2023

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.40

$0.02

$3.42

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3676527

Reference #

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006245102!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council will hold a
public hearing on Thursday, March
23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., Guadalupe
Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del
Yaqui, Council Chambers,
Guadalupe, AZ 85283, to receive
public comment on the following:
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for a
conditional use permit and Variance to
locate a manufactured home on the
5536 East Calle Encinas, zoned R1-6
Residential. 1. Conditional Use Permit
Application (CU2023-03) – Petra
Alicia Mendez Neyoy, Applicant, is
requesting a conditional use permit to
install a manufactured home on the
property located at 5536 East Calle
Encinas, Guadalupe, AZ. APN 301-
12-104D. The lot is zoned R1-6,
Single-family Residential. 2. Variance
Application (V2023-02) – Petra Alicia
Mendez Neyoy, Applicant, is
requesting a variance to the Town of
Guadalupe Zoning Code, Chapter 54,
Zoning, Section §154.065(E), Single
Family Residential Districts R-1-9 and
R-1-6, Area, Height, and Setback
Regulations. The variance request is
to decrease the Minimum Lot Width
requirement of 60' to 50'. The property
is located at 5536 East Calle Encinas,
Guadalupe, AZ. APN 301-12-104D.
The lot is zoned R1-6, Single-family
Residential. Written comments or
objections may be filed via email at
clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at
the hearing. Copies of the Application
are available for review at Guadalupe
Town Hall. Publish: Monday, March 6,
2023
3/6/23

RR-3676527#

46



47



Tag # BEL01963TX

48

rruiz
Highlight



49



50



51



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G5. & G6. Variance Request
G7. & G8. Conditional Use Permit Request 

North 

Seeking Variance And 
Conditional Use Permit for 
Manufactured Home

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

5536 E. Calle Encinas

Zoning: R1-6

Lot Size: 6007 Sq ft. 

52



5536 E. Calle Encinas – Public Notice
G5. Variance Request 
G7. Conditional Use Permit Request

Notification: 
North 

150’

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

53



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G5. & G6. Variance Request 

Town Council 
Meeting March 23, 

2023 

§ 154.065 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS: 
R-1-9 AND R-1-6.

The composition of the districts listed above shall be as 
follows.
(E) Area, height, and setback regulations.

(1) The following requirements shall be observed for 
residential uses in the R-1-9 and R-1-6 zoning districts.

Minimum Yard Setbacks

Zoning
District

Min. Lot Area Min. Lot
Width

Min. Lot
Depth

Front Side Street Side Rear Max. Bldg.
Height

R-1-9 9,000 square feet 80’ 100’ 30’ 10’ 20’ 10’ 30’; accessory
building

R-1-6 6,000 square feet 60’ 90’ 25’ 7’* 15’ 10’ 30’

*for ease of access, 1 side shall be at least 10 feet in width. Churches and schools 35 feet on each side.

54



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G5. & G6. Variance Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

North

55



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G5. & G6. Variance Request 

Town Council 
Meeting March 23, 

2023 

§ 154.031 VARIANCES.

(A) Application for a variance of zoning regulations shall be filed upon a form 
provided and shall be accompanied by plans and description sufficient to 
indicate the nature of the variance involved.

(B) A variance from the provisions of this chapter shall not be authorized 
unless the Town Council shall find upon sufficient evidence:

(1) There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the 
property, including its size, shape, topography, location, or surroundings, 
the strict application of this chapter will deprive such property of 
privileges enjoyed by other properties in the same district;

(2) Such special circumstances were not created by the owner or 
applicant; and

(3) The authorizing of the application will not be materially 
detrimental to persons residing or working in the vicinity nor constitute 
the granting of special privileges inconsistent with the limitations of 
adjacent property, the neighborhood, or the public welfare in general.

56



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G5. & G6. Variance Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

North

Town Staff Recommendation:   
Approve variance

Sufficient evidence demonstrates: 
• Special circumstances – existing 

lot width of 50 feet
• Special circumstances – not 

created by owner
• Not detrimental to neighboring 

area, nor granting of special privileges.

57



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G7. & G8. Conditional Use Permit Request 
§ 154.065 SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS: R-1-9 AND R-1-6.

The composition of the districts listed above 
shall be as follows.

(A) Intent. The single-family residential districts 
are intended to provide for low density, 
detached housing in the R-1-9 district and 
medium density, detached housing in the R-1-6 
District.

(B) Permitted uses.

(1) One-family dwelling

(D) Conditional uses. The following uses 
shall be permitted as conditional uses, 
subject to obtaining a conditional use 
permit.

(5) One mobile home per lot.
Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

58



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G7. & G8. Conditional Use Permit Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

Setbacks
• 25’ front 
• 7’ side 
• 15’ street side 
• 10’ rear 

Building 
envelope
• 37’ x 85’ 

North

59



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G7. & G8. Conditional Use Permit Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

Setbacks
• 25’ front 
• 7’ side 
• 15’ street side 
• 10’ rear 

Building 
envelope
• 37’ x 85’ 

Building 
Footprint
• 14’ X 66’

North

60



5536 E. Calle Encinas:
G7. & G8. Conditional Use Permit Request 

North 
Seeking Conditional Use 
Permit for Manufactured / 
Mobile Home

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

5536 E. Calle Encinas

Zoning: R1-6

Lot Size: 6007 Sq ft. 

Recommendation:
Approve conditional use permit 
with stipulation to comply with all 
Town manufactured / mobile 
home requirements, February 
2020.

61



RZ2023-01 62



63



64



65



66



67



 
 

Town of Guadalupe 
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ  85283 
(480) 730-3080 

Notice of Public Hearing 

The Guadalupe Town Council will hold a public hearing on Thursday, March 23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., 
Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui, Council Chambers, Guadalupe, AZ  85283, to receive 
public comment on the following: 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Request for a Rezoning to build an Auto Service to perform automobile minor repairs, 
tune ups and oil changes on 5605 East Calle Mexico, currently zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial.   
 

1. Rezoning Application (RZ2023-01) – 9412 South Avenida del Yaqui: Jose Abel Armenta, 
Applicant, is requesting to rezone the property located at 5605 East Calle Mexico (APN #301-06-
194) that is currently zoned C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 General Commercial, so that the 
proposed use of the property would comply with allowable uses with the C-2 zoning designation as 
defined in Guadalupe Town Code, Section 154.067(C)(3 & 4).  The proposed use for the property 
is to perform automobile minor repairs, tune ups and oil changes.   
 

 
Written comments or objections may be filed via email at clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at the hearing.  
Copies of the Application are available for review at Guadalupe Town Hall.       
 
 

Publish:  Tuesday, March 7, 2023 
 
 
 

68



    
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T H E   R E C O R D   R E P O R T E R

RR#

~SINCE 1914~

To the right is a copy of the notice you sent to us for publication in THE
RECORD REPORTER. Please read this notice carefully and fax or e-mail
(record_reporter@dailyjournal.com) any corrections. The Affidavit will be filed,
if required, and mailed to you after the last date below. Publication date(s) for
this notice is (are):

Mailing Address : 2025 N THIRD ST #155, PHOENIX, AZ 85004-1425
Telephone (602) 417-9900 / Fax (602) 417-9910

Visit us @ www.RecordReporter.com

ROCIO RUIZ
TOWN OF GUADALUPE
9241 S AVENIDA DEL YAQUI
GUADALUPE, AZ  85283

MCHRG NOTICE OF HEARING

5605 EAST CALLE MEXICO

03/06/2023

Publication

Arizona Sales Tax

Total

$3.00

$0.02

$3.02

Notice Type: 

Ad Description

COPY OF NOTICE

3676532

Reference # 66399

(Not an Affidavit of Publication. Do not file.)

Your Legal Publishing

!A000006245110!

The charge(s) for this order is as follows. An invoice will be sent after the last
date of publication. If you prepaid this order in full, you will not receive an
invoice.

Notice of Public Hearing The
Guadalupe Town Council will hold a
public hearing on Thursday, March
23, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., Guadalupe
Town Hall, 9241 S. Avenida del
Yaqui, Council Chambers,
Guadalupe, AZ 85283, to receive
public comment on the following:
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for a
Rezoning to build an Auto Service to
perform automobile minor repairs,
tune ups and oil changes on 5605
East Calle Mexico, currently zoned C-
1 Neighborhood Commercial. 1.
Rezoning Application (RZ2023-01) –
9412 South Avenida del Yaqui: Jose
Abel Armenta, Applicant, is requesting
to rezone the property located at 5605
East Calle Mexico (APN #301-06-
194) that is currently zoned C-1
Neighborhood Commercial to C-2
General Commercial, so that the
proposed use of the property would
comply with allowable uses with the
C-2 zoning designation as defined in
Guadalupe Town Code, Section
154.067(C)(3 & 4). The proposed use
for the property is to perform
automobile minor repairs, tune ups
and oil changes. Written comments or
objections may be filed via email at
clerk@guadalupeaz.org prior to, or at
the hearing. Copies of the Application
are available for review at Guadalupe
Town Hall. Publish: Monday, March 6,
2023
3/6/23

RR-3676532#

69



70



71



72



73



North 
Current Zoning: 
C‐1

Requested Zoning: 
C‐2

5606 E. Calle Mexico
Lot Size: 9,227 sq. ft. 

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

74



North 

5605 E. Calle Mexico

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

75



§ 154.067 COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS; C-1 NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL, C-2 
GENERAL COMMERCIAL and C-M MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL

(A.) Intent.  The C-2 District is intended to provide space for general retail and office 
uses, and efficient development of major retail shopping areas to serve the needs of 
the community and regional area. 

(B.)   General regulations.  Overhead doors, loading and service bays, and outdoor 
storage shall be screened from public view; Any use which is objectionable by reason 
of emission of odor, dust, smoke, gas, vibration, or noise, or may impose hazard to 
health or property, shall be prohibited. Yards required adjacent to public streets shall 
be entirely landscaped except for necessary driveways and walkways;

(C.4.) The following outdoor general retail business and service establishments 
shall be permitted in the C-2 and C-M Districts:

(a) Automobile service stations, including minor    
repairs and lubricating, automobile car wash  
service;

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request, 
Conditional Use Permit Request NOT Required for Requested Use in C‐2

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

76



North 

150’ Notification  Area

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

77



Setbacks

North 

Building 
footprint

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

15’ street side setback

12’ side setback

25
’ f

ro
nt

 s
et

ba
ck

15
’ r

ea
r s

et
ba

ck

Access Using
Existing Driveway

Approx.
30’x 50’
Building 

Area

Parking

78



5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 
These development standards apply to the property:
1. Per Code §154.067. B.3, Maintain screening from public street view 
and adjacent properties by opaque fences or walls, six feet in height.

2. Per Code §154.067. B.4, Yards required adjacent to public streets 
shall be entirely landscaped except for necessary driveways and 
walkways.
3. Per Code §154.067. B.7, Any use which is objectionable by reason 
of emission of odor, dust, smoke, gas, vibration, or noise, or may 
impose hazard to health or property, shall be prohibited.

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

Re
fu

se
C

on
ta

in
er

Approx.
30’x 50’
Building 

Area

Parking
1:300 s.f.

Screen Wall, 6’ high

A
cc

es
s 

G
at

e,
 

Sc
re

en
ed

Landscaping &
Retention

North 

79



These standards also apply to the property:

4. Per Code §103.07 NOISE. 
(4) Public disturbances.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to cause, or for any person 
in possession of property to allow to originate from the property, 
any noise which disturbs the peace or quiet of any neighborhood if 
such noise can be heard from within closed residential structures 
located within 500 feet of the boundary of the property from which 
such noise emanates. This division shall not apply to noise produced in 
the normal conduct of business provided that such noise occurs within 
the normal and customary hours for the conduct of such business, 
which is based on the normal and customary hours of operation of 
similar, existing businesses, and the operation is legally conducted 
within the scope of all ordinances, laws, and statutes of the Town of 
Guadalupe, Maricopa County, and the State of Arizona.

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

Max.
30’ high

North 

80



5. Per Code §103.07 NOISE. 
(D.e.): 
It is unlawful for any person to cause the excessive revving of any 
motor vehicle engine while such vehicle is not in motion, except when 
done during the repair or testing of such vehicle between the hours of 
7:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. provided the following conditions are met:

1. The motor vehicle engine is equipped with a muffler in 
proper working order and in constant operation.

2. The motor vehicle engine is not equipped with a cut‐out, 
bypass, or similar muffler elimination unit.

3. The motor vehicle engine is not equipped with any device 
that amplifies motor noise or motor vehicle exhaust noise.

6. PER § 51.05 OPERATING FACILITIES OR ACTIVITIES.
(A) All persons owning or operating premises or engaged in 

activities who are required by federal or state law 
to submit to EPA and/or ADEQ a notice of intent (NOI) to comply with 
an NPDES or AZPDES storm water permit shall provide a copy of such 
notice to the Director upon request.

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

Max.
30’ high

North 

81



North 

Current Zoning: 
C‐1

Requested Zoning: 
C‐2

Recommendation:  Approve the rezoning C‐2 request.

Intensification from C‐1 to C‐2 Commercial uses along this 
block of the S. Avenida Del Yaqui commercial arterial may be 
compatible with the surrounding area.  Use and screening 
protections limit negative impacts to adjacent residential 
properties.  Existing development standards apply for new 
construction.

5605 E. Calle Mexico – Rezoning Request 
5606 E. Calle Mexico
Lot Size: 9,227 sq. ft. 

Town Council Meeting March 23, 2023 

82


	03 23 23 Agenda.pdf
	Informational Cover Memo.pdf
	03 09 23 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	G1._G4. a. Application - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista.pdf
	G1._G4. b. Public Notice 3_06_2023 - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista CU-VA.pdf
	G1._G4. c. On-Site Public Notice - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista.pdf
	G1._G4. d. MH tag 1 - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista.pdf
	G1._G4. e. MH tag 3 - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista.pdf
	G1._G4. f. Deed - 9403 S Calle Bella Vista.pdf
	G1._G4. g. Conditional Use Permit Manufactured Home 9403 S. Bella Vista Council Presentation  3_23_23.pdf
	G5._G8. a. Application - 5536 E Encinas.pdf
	G5._G8. b. Public Notice - 5536 E Calle Encinas.pdf
	G5._G8. c. On-Site Public Notice.pdf
	G5._G8. d. MH measurements - 5536 E Calle Encinas.pdf
	G5._G8. e. Deed - 5536 E. Calle Encinas.pdf
	G5._G8. f.  Conditional Use Permit Manufactured Home 5536 E Calle Encinas Council Presentation  3_23_23.pdf
	G9._G10. a. Application - 5605 E Calle Mexico RZ2023-01.pdf
	G9._G10. b. Public Notice 3_06_2023 - 5605 E Calle Mexico Rezoning.pdf
	G9._G10. c. On-Site Public Notice 5605 E. Calle Mexico.pdf
	G9._G10. d. 5605 E Calle Mexico - Deed - Legal Description.pdf
	G9._G10. e. 5605 E Calle Mexico - Power Point Presentation.pdf



